FAMILY’S LEGACIES SPAN 200 YEARS
The Page/Peaslee Family
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One can only imagine the emotions that flowed through Jabez Page as he made his way from Salisbury, Massachusetts to the woods of Kingston in 1734.  Settlements were few and scattered, travel was difficult and Indians still roamed about.  Yet over the next 200 years Jabez Page and his descendants farmed and worked their lands, helped their community and left Danville with a wealth of memories and legacies. 

The homestead of Jabez Page apparently started with a farm with horses, cattle and sheep near Main Street in the area of the Danville/Fremont town line.  As the town prepared for its independence in 1755 he joined 26 other men to help build Danville’s Meeting House.  He purchased a pew in the Meeting House and was one of 22 signers of the deed for a six-acre parcel of land given in 1763 to the town’s first minister, the Rev. John Page.  

In 1782 his son, Thomas, a lawyer inherited most of the lands Jabez acquired during his lifetime.  Thomas’ name appears on numerous wills, deeds and other legal documents executed in the town during his lifetime, evidencing his community service.  Unfortunately, Thomas neglected to pen a will for himself!  When he died intestate in 1829 a special “committee” was appointed by the Probate Court to divide up the family lands among numerous heirs!

Thomas’ son, Daniel, a Danville selectman and school committee member, was involved in millwork and logging in Danville’s forests.  Daniel acquired parcels of land in and around the abandoned Tuckertown village.  His estate papers list “wood and pasture land called “Tucker land”.  Daniel also owned part of a sawmill in Danville called “the great meadow mill” on the west side of Main Street across from Long Pond Road.  All of this was inherited by his only son, John when Daniel died in 1853.

John Page lived in the parsonage house on Main Street built for the Rev. John Page.  Whether the two men were related is unknown.  During his lifetime John regained some of the wood and pasture lands that apparently once belonged to his ancestors. He carried on the business of his father, engaging in forestry, logging, and milling, as well as haying in “the Great Mill Meadow.”  When he died in 1859 he owned 268 acres of wood and pasture land on the north side of Tucker Road and more than 100 acres of pasture, wood and meadow land in other locations in town, including “the Great Mill Meadow.”

John’s Page’s only child, his daughter Juliette, inherited his lands.  She married Jacob Peaslee of Kingston, a member of another local logging family.  Jacob and Juliette Peaslee moved into the parsonage house and continued to harvest the Page family lands.  They sold several small parcels of land abutting the Meeting House Cemetery and Center Cemetery to the town.  Jacob and Juliette also owned what was known as “the Peaslee ice pond”, located behind the Meeting House Cemetery.  This piece of  land would be flooded for the winter months.  When it became frozen, the Peaslees leased out to others the privilege to erect ice houses and cut and sell block ice for use as refrigeration in ice boxes.  A path bounded by two stone walls leading to the pond is still visible next to the Meeting House Cemetery.  

Although Juliette had two children, her only son died shortly after she died in 1911.  Her daughter, Henrietta became the last descendant of this family, as she had never married and had no children.  Henrietta took up residence by herself in the parsonage house and continued the Peaslee ice pond business.  In the early 1900’s she began to sell parcels of family land to timber companies.  The timber companies cut the wood from the lands and abandoned them.  Henrietta must have been aware her family’s heritage was coming to an end.  In 1930 she donated 1 ½ acres of land abutting the Center Cemetery as a memorial to her mother and father, Juliette and Jacob Peaslee.  In 1912 she and others founded the Old Meeting House Association.  When she died in 1935 she left funds to the town for care of the Meeting House.  She expressed in her will that her remaining properties stay in the Peaslee family. 

At least three generations of the Page/Peaslee family lived in the original parsonage home of the Rev. John Page.  The Meeting House Association continues to watch over the Meeting House to this day.  Although Henrietta Peaslee’s remaining properties were sold six years after her death, the parsonage home has been well cared for by its subsequent owners.  Through a twist of fate, the town acquired large tracts of the abandoned forest land that once belonged to the family by tax deed and the Town has just purchased “the Great Mill Meadow” as conservation land.  This family’s heritage is now interwoven with Danville’s town forest and the town’s new historic district.  Although the lineage of the Page/Peaslee family has come to an end, their legacies remain a source of pride and enjoyment for Danville and a reminder of this family’s heritage.

Note:  Henrietta Peaslee’s cousin, Charlotte Peaslee Wood and her husband, Frederic Wood, lived in Kingston, NH If you have any photographs, documents or other information about the Page/Peaslee family, please write our Heritage Commission at P. O. Box 11, Danville, NH  03819.

